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LEWISVILLE

March 9, 2020

To the Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Council,
and Citizens of the City of Lewisville, Texas:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lewisville, Texas, for the
year ended September 30, 2019, is submitted herewith. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the City, on a Government-wide and Fund basis. All disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the City’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation
of the City’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, that it is
presented in a manner to fairly represent the financial position and results of operations of the City
and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
City’s financial affairs have been included. The CAFR for the year ended September 30, 2019, is
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and in conformance
with standards of financial reporting established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) using guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association
of the United States and Canada (GFOA).

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with
one another.

City of Lewisville e Finance Department

I51 W. Church Street e Lewisville, TX 75057
972.219.3420 o [F] 972.219.3414
www.cityoflewisville.com



GENERAL INFORMATION - CITY OF LEWISVILLE

The City of Lewisville is geographically located north of the hub of the ten-county metropolitan
area containing Dallas and Fort Worth, Texas. The City is characterized as a predominantly
suburban residential community situated in the growth corridor linking the Dallas/Fort Worth
International Airport (Tarrant County) through Lewisville (Denton County) to cities in east Collin
County. Lewisville shares the metroplex economy based primarily on commerce, tourism,
manufacturing, and finance.

The City of Lewisville was incorporated in 1925. The current charter was adopted in 1963 and
most recently amended in November 2017. Lewisville is a home-rule city and operates under the
Council-Manager form of government. The City Council is comprised of the Mayor and five
members and is responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions and regulations governing the
City. In addition, the City Council appoints the members of various boards and commissions, the
City Manager, City Attorney, City Judge, and City Secretary. As chief administrative officer, the
City Manager is responsible for implementing Council policies, overseeing municipal operations,
and appointing and supervising the various department directors. The City provides the full range
of municipal services as authorized by statute or charter. This includes public safety (police and
fire), streets, water and sewer utilities, sanitation, health and social services, parks and recreation,
public improvements, community development with planning, zoning and economic development,
tourism, and general administrative services.

In addition, the City of Lewisville has organizations called component units. Component units are
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the City of Lewisville are
financially accountable. As of September 30, 2019, component units for the City of Lewisville
are:

Lewisville Housing Finance Corporation

Lewisville Industrial Development Authority, Inc.

Lewisville Parks and Library Development Corporation

Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number 1, City of Lewisville, Texas (Old Town)
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number 2, City of Lewisville, Texas

City of Lewisville Health Benefit Trust

Lewisville Local Government Corporation

Lewisville Crime Control and Prevention District

Lewisville Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Lewisville continues to experience positive annual population and new residential and commercial
growth. Between the years 2000 to 2010, Lewisville’s population increased by 22.6% to 95,290
per the 2010 U.S Census. The 2019 population estimate from North Central Texas Council of
Governments (NCTCOG) is 105,640. Lewisville is located in Denton County, one of the top 20
fastest-growing counties in the country per U.S. Census. The City has added a tremendous number
of infill development and redevelopment projects that have aided in the rejuvenation of the City.
Lewisville’s makeup is unique because the community is largely developed with limited vacant
land available. Estimates are for the residential population to be approximately 140,000 (including
extraterritorial jurisdiction) at the time of build-out (2035).

Consistent with last year, all sub-markets across the Lewisville economy grew strength in their
fundamentals; low vacancy rates, steadily increasing rents and market value, and growing
inventory. The Economic Development Department regularly monitors performance indicators for
all sub-markets across Lewisville. A snapshot below, illustrates the overall commercial sectors in
Lewisville and compares current performance over averages of the last ten years.

Key Performance Indicators

1 Year Ago Currant ’,‘ Typleal Range Extreme Range
- 10 Year Avela_ae'{EOWO - 2020)

Vacancy Rate

5.4% 8.7%
6.8% 10.4% 14.0%
51% 18.2%
12 Month Net Absorption SF e
P (853 1,004,004
e
307408 786.434 1,265,156
(132,507) 2,020,067
12 Month Del d SF
onth Delivere: 789,901 1,737,084
440,500 1,086,024 1,721,172
127 865 2,676,135
Annual Rent Growth 2.2% 33%
-0.2% 2.1% 4.5%
24% 48%
Market Rent Per SF $1375 | $14.06
$10.84 $12.05 $13.15
§10.72 $14.06
Market Sale Price Per SF §138 [ §143
02 s112 §132
§74 $143
Market Cap Rate [ 6.1% |
P
6.1% 6.6% TA%
61% 7.9%
12 Month Sales Volume [s16am) $536 M
~
$113 M 5269 M $426 M
F59M $630 M



Diversified Tax Base-The City of Lewisville has made an effort to maintain a diverse composition
in its tax base as illustrated on the chart below. This diversity provides stability among economic
cycles as well as spreads the tax burden between commercial and residential.

2019-20 Market Value
(in Billions)

$1.2

$5.0

$5.6

$2.3

m Single Family = Multi Family = Commercial = Other

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Lewisville 2025 Plan—The Lewisville 2025 Plan is the City’s strategic plan that includes nine
Big Moves guiding the development of the City of Lewisville over a ten-year period starting FY
2015/16. The plan serves to set a vision for the future and provide a framework as Lewisville looks
to celebrate its centennial in 2025. The plan was developed with more than a year of public input
and discussion that garnered hundreds of ideas and suggestions. That input was studied extensively
by the Lewisville 2025 Committee, working with City staff and professional consultants. After an
extensive public involvement process, the plan was complete and adopted in July 2014. The
resulting Lewisville 2025 plan sets a clear shared vision for the kind of community Lewisville
hopes to be in 2025. The plan identifies nine Big Moves to make that vision a reality. Some of
the major accomplishments during 2019 are listed below:

e Green Centerpiece (Create and educate the public about unique destinations within the areas
of the floodway, public land, and adjacent private lands.)

o0 City worked with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to minimize impacts on LLELA during
repair work on Lewisville Lake dam. That work began in 2019 and is expected to last
through 2024. Despite some habitat loss, and temporary partial closures, LLELA has
largely remained open to the public during the construction process.

0 In May, the City purchased 148 undeveloped acres of land along the east side of the EIm
Fork of the Trinity River. This purchase will accommodate right-of-way associated with
the future Corporate Drive (north tract), provide trails for connectivity, accommodate
kayak launch locations, and increase greenspace.

0 In September, Parks and Recreation Department completed an interpretive plan for
LLELA. This plan will guide how learning and interpretation is incorporated throughout
the entire visitor experience at LLELA. The intent is to teach visitors the importance of
native Texas ecosystems and biodiversity.



(0]

Construction of the canoe and kayak launch site along the Elm Fork of the Trinity River
off Hebron Parkway began in June 2019. The project includes a driveway from Hebron
Parkway to the launch site, a parking area for vehicles and trailers, a handicap-accessible
dock, and minor landscape improvements. The target date for completion is set for
Spring 2020.

Extending the Green (Implement the City’s adopted Trails Master Plan and to give Lewisville
residents access to these systems within a reasonable walking distance of their neighborhoods.)

(0}

Construction on the Garden Ridge Trail project started in June. Enhanced sidewalks have
been built along Garden Ridge Boulevard from I-35E to FM 407, as well as the trail
segment underneath the power lines toward Highlands Park. The project is now working
south of FM 407 on Garden Ridge Boulevard toward North Valley Parkway.

Texas Parks and Wildlife Department awarded the city a $500,000 matching grant in
May for Phase I of Thrive Nature Park, an 18-acre site located across Valley Parkway from
the recreation center. A public charrette was held to develop concept designs for the park.
Urban Land Institute selected Lewisville to participate in a national study on increasing
access to parks and open spaces. A group of nationally renowned land use, urban design,
and real estate experts representing ULI visited Lewisville in March to develop
recommendations. The initial study is focused on the area bounded by SH 121, I-35E and
Corporate Drive. This kicked off Lewisville’s participation in the “10 Minute Walk”
campaign, which sets the goal of ensuring all residents live within a 10-minute walk of a
park or open space.

DCTA completed construction of the A-train Rail Trail. This 19-mile paved trail runs
continuously from Hebron Station to Denton. It also connects to existing trails along the
route, including the new Garden Ridge trail in Lewisville.

Sustainability (Provide a framework for all areas of municipal operations and place emphasis
on green initiatives while reducing demands on limited resources.)

(0]

Conservation measures taken by the City during 2019 saved more than 1.5 million kWh of
electricity. Work during the year included additional LED retrofit lighting in City facilities
and parking lots, replacing several old HVAC units, installing occupancy sensors, roof
replacement and restoration with Cool Roof treatment, and upgrading the building
automation system for maximum efficiency.

Additional sustainability efforts by the City included adding three environmentally friendly
vehicles, including one electric vehicle, and adding two propane mowers. During the year,
36,805 square yards of concrete were recycled into reusable aggregate.

The City earned the Silver Level Recognition Award from DFW Clean Cities for its fuel
saving and pollution reducing efforts in fleet vehicles. This is the first time Lewisville has
earned the Silver Level Award. The City earned the Bronze Level Award in 2015, 2017,
and 2018.

City began work on a five-year Sustainability Plan. This plan will identify specific goals
and metrics for city operations to build a more sustainable city. The plan builds upon
strategies identified in the 2025 plan and could include initiatives such as water and energy
conservation goals, and innovative programs that take a new look at familiar topics such
as greenspace, public transportation, and health and wellness.



Old Town (Identify new and renovated residential, retail and commercial opportunities and to
raise the profile of the City’s historic Old Town by increasing activities and quality events.)

(0}

The Main Street portion of the Main & Mill Corridor Project was substantially completed
in September, and work began on the Mill Street portion. This project will promote
walkability and include aesthetic and parking improvements on both streets. Design is
nearly complete on S. Kealy Avenue with overall project completion by September.

City awarded a contract to install fire sprinklers in the historic buildings along Main Street,
between Mill and Charles. This project is being funded by the City in order to protect these
historically significant structures and preserve the heritage of Old Town.

Old Town welcomed multiple new businesses during 2019, including Sloan & Williams
Winery and Outlaw Cider on Main Street, and Sullivan Old Town BBQ and Bodega in the
former Old Town Market on Mill Street. The Bodega offers a selection of grocery products
at a location convenient for Old Town residents.

Worked with a Council appointed committee, “Old Town Branding Task Force” to create
a new brand for Old Town designed to draw visitors, residents, and business investment in
the historic district. The brand was developed by Tonic 3, a national marketing firm officed
in Old Town, and presented to City Council in December.

Old Town continues to add new residential options. Construction started on phase two of
the Walters Street Brownstones, and the City finalized development deals on three pieces
of City-owned property. Old Town Lofts will bring 200 upscale multi-family units with
parking garages in two six-story buildings, one at Main & Mill and one at Mill and Elm.
Construction started on a 300-unit low-rise complex on College Street across from DCTA
Old Town Station as part of a larger Transit-Oriented Development (TOD).

Thriving Neighborhoods (Create neighborhood-specific reinvestment strategies and to work
with neighborhood groups to evaluate, identify and fund needed improvements.)

(0]

Together Lewisville Coalition partnered with the Next Steps Center to hold two
Community Resource Expos in May and November. Each event had 45 participating
agencies and businesses, with 130 -140 residents attending each session.

Through the Property Enhancement Program (PEP), the City awarded homeowners more
than $105,000 during Fiscal Year 2018-19 to assist with

necessary exterior home repairs. The program helped residents complete 51 projects, which
brings the lifetime total of PEP projects to 154.

Fire Station 3 was relocated from 195 W. Corporate Drive to 500 W. Round Grove Road.
Fire Station 8 opened in March 2019 at 3300 Lakewood Hills Drive in east Lewisville. A
second ladder truck entered service in January 2019 housed at Fire Station 6.

The Nuisance Abatement Program was extended to two additional properties in 2019.
Lewisville PD began this program in 2018 to identify properties that have a high number
of nuisance crimes and to work with property owners to reduce crime. The police
department provides specific crime reduction strategies for the owner to implement. At the
first location added in 2019, the program led to a reduction in nuisance-related crimes of
approximately 80 percent and reduced calls for service by 32 percent. At the second
location added in 2019, the program led to a reduction in nuisance-related crimes of
29 percent and calls for service by 19 percent. Through this program, the department
continues to address nuisance issues at a third location.



(0]

North Central Texas Council of Governments awarded a $3 million grant for streetscape
improvements on College Street between Mill and DCTA Old Town Station. The addition
of pedestrian and bike amenities will support high density, walkable, urban residential
projects planned or under construction by the rail station.

New Neighborhood Choices (Create and encourage new residential choices such as upscale
single-family homes, mixed-use complexes, and high-density housing close to the three DCTA
stations.)

(0}

City continued preparing for planned annexation of Castle Hills, which could happen as
early as Summer 2021. Public Services is examining streets, alleys, and the storm sewer
system to identify future maintenance and replacement needs. City officials increased
communication with Castle Hills residents through a monthly water-bill insert and
quarterly meetings. City Council appointed Castle Hills residents to designated boards and
commissions.

Construction began on Aura Old Town, a Transit-Oriented Development at College Street,
near the DCTA Old Town Station. The 286-unit complex will be four stories tall and wrap
around a structural parking garage and three courtyards. This is one of two large residential
developments in this area.

Construction neared completion on Tower Bay Lofts, a resort-style luxury apartment
development with more than 300 units, including several multi-level units with penthouses
on top, near Lewisville Lake, east of [-35E, north of Garden Ridge Boulevard. Planned
amenities include an enclosed parking garage, a sky lounge that includes an indoor/outdoor
kitchen, and an outdoor television wall and four separate courtyards. The building exterior
will feature stone, brick, stucco, metal, and wood designed to capture some elements from
the existing tower that has been on the property for a long time.

Construction began on Vista Del Lago, an urban mixed-use community featuring more
than 300 townhomes along SH121 near Lake Vista Drive. This complex will be made up
of two-story and some three-story single-family attached units built with brick, stone,
stucco, and exposed aggregate. The complex also will include multiple green spaces,
courtyards, plazas, and common areas for residents.

Employment Centers (Support the long-term success of these centers and promote a sense of
pride between businesses and community services.)

(0}

2019 was a banner year for economic development in Lewisville. During the year, several
companies, like DJO Global, Innovative IDM, Baymark Health Services, HOYA, and
Caliber Collision, opened or expanded their company headquarters in Lewisville. This
resulted in the creation or retention of over 2,000 jobs in 2019 alone. Additionally, private
investment has soared over $200 million with the addition of more than 2 million square
feet of office/warehouse development in the city’s largest business parks. Moreover,
Majestic Airport Center DFW, made headlines when Ericsson chose its Lewisville
locations for both its Center of Excellence training facility for 5G radio tower climbers and
its new state of the art 5G Smart Factory of the Future where the company will manufacture
5G radio cells. Both facilities total more than 350,000 square feet and over $130 million in
investment over the next two years.
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On the northeast side of town, Creekview 121 boasts another 2 million square foot business
park where companies are looking to grow in Lewisville. In fact, Benjamin Moore, North
America's leading manufacturer of premium quality residential, commercial and industrial
maintenance coatings, chose a 238,000 square foot facility in Creekview 121 business park
to enhance its distribution and logistics reach across the country.

In the hospitality sector, La Quinta Inn & Suites opened a new 129 room hotel along the
northwest intersection of [-35E and Corporate Drive, and Home 2 Suites is close to opening
its new facility with 122 rooms on the southeast corner of the same intersection.

Zion Market, the San Diego based Korean grocery market, opened its first Texas location
at the former Sears building at Music City Mall in August with thousands of shoppers
taking advantage of the great deals on their opening day. Hundreds of new jobs were
established with its opening, and hundreds more are planned in the future as the remainder
of the marketplace opens over the next two years.

Lewisville’s thriving economic climate has resulted in a higher quality of life, more entertainment
options, and greater access to jobs than ever before.

Identity Focal Point (Create a strong graphic presence at the major gateways so Lewisville
stands apart from other cities along [-35E.)

(0]

City Council created a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone for the Northern Gateway, on
the west side of I-35E south of FM 407, as a way to encourage quality mixed-use
development and significant public greenspace in that area. The goal of the Northern
Gateway is to create an active mix of uses that benefit from significant open space.

Two projects of the Northern Gateway are currently under construction. Huffines is
developing a 250-unit townhome complex west of Summit Avenue. The NPR Group is
creating a large mixed-use development featuring seven three-story residential buildings
between North Summit Avenue and the [-35E access road.

Marketing & Communications (Strengthen the communications program within the City,
enhance the message to residents, and better promote the people and businesses in the City.)

(0]

The City increased its focus on informing residents about City related news, special events,
and public projects through the Horizon newsletter, that is printed and mailed to 40,000
Lewisville and Castle Hills households each quarter, through the eHorizon newsletter that
is emailed to more than 17,000 subscribers every two weeks, and through the City’s social
media sites (Twitter, Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, and LinkedIn).

Labor Day Weekend, the City partnered with Live Nation to produce “Texas Pop Turns
50,” a two-day music festival to commemorate the 50 anniversary of the “Texas
International Pop Festival.” ZZ Top and Chicago were the headliners for this event at Lake
Park. More than 20,000 people attended the event.

In May, The Wall That Heals, a mobile three-quarter scale replica of the Vietnam Veterans
Memorial, went on display at Lake Park. This was the only North Texas tour stop for the
exhibit. More than 5,000 people visited the exhibit during its three-day run.

In October, the City dedicated a life-sized bronze sculpture portraying civic leader and
former Lewisville Mayor Wayne Ferguson along the boardwalk in the plaza that bears his
name. The sculpture, created by David and Martin Iles of Bolivar Bronze in Sanger,
includes a stack of rolled maps and a collection of personal items important to Ferguson,
including a saddle blanket, chaps, and his favorite pair of spurs.



0 City launched the new “ourLewisvilleTX” smart phone app in December. It replaces the
original “myLewisvilleTX” app. This new free app serves as a civic engagement and
information hub for all things related to Lewisville. Requests submitted through the app go
directly to the appropriate City department for resolution and follow up.

To view the full list of accomplishments from 2019, along with a message from the Mayor, budget
and tax information and “What’s Next” for the Big Moves, go to the Lewisville 2025 Vision
Annual Report found online at www.cityoflewisville.com/lewisville2025.

Major Roadway Projects—The Main and Mill Street improvements project began within the last
year and is ongoing with an expected completion date of September 2020. The $9 million project
converts the 4-lane thoroughfares which are adjacent to the downtown core to two lane streets with
parallel and back-in angle parking, bike lanes, wide sidewalks, landscaping and street furniture.
The project will provide pedestrian access to retail and restaurant businesses as well as high density
apartments. The project was funded with a combination of City and Regional Toll Revenue.

Corporate Drive, a $77 million roadway project, encompasses several segments from Waters
Ridge to Trinity Drive. Segments 1 & 7 (Waters Ridge to Railroad Street and Josey to Trinity
Drive is complete; Segment 6 from FM544 to Josey is complete except for the Kansas City
Southern (KCS) railroad underpass. City Staff is working with the KCS railroad toward approving
the plans, so the project can proceed to construction soon. Bidding is expected in late 2020. Design
has been completed for Segment 5, Holford’s Prairie to Old Denton Road and construction could
begin in 2020 pending right of way and easement acquisition. Finally, Segments 2-4, Railroad
Street to Holford’s Prairie is at 90% design with right of way acquisition underway. The largest
roadway project in the City’s history is being funded with City, Denton County and Regional Toll
Revenues (RTR).



Residential Growth— A significant number of new residential subdivisions are either underway

or planned in Lewisville. These projects include:

Summit Avenue

Highpoint Oak Southwest corner of Single family 86 84 Completed

Estates Vista Ridge Mall Drive
and Denton Tap Road

Wyndale Meadows East of FM 544 and Single-family 232 165 units completed
south of SH 121

Crescent Estates Summit Lane south of | Single-family 62 47 units completed; 15 under
College Parkway construction

Vista Del Lago North Side of State Single-Family 154 18 units completed
Highway 121, (Attached)
Approximately 1,150
Feet
East of MacArthur
Boulevard

Lakewood Hills Josey Lane and Single-family 525 35 completed
Windhaven Parkway

South Village Elm Street & Mill Single-family 63 16 completed
Street

Legacy Pointe East Side of Kealy Single-family 97 Under Construction
Ave., east of rodeo
grounds, north of
College St

Willowbrook Southeast corner of Single-family 75 Under Construction
Denton Tap Rd and
Vista Ridge Mall Drive

The Manors at Vista Vista Ridge Mall area Multi-family 72 Complete

Ridge (Townhomes)

Windhaven Crossing | SH 121 and is Multi-family 367 22 units completed
bisected by the (Townhomes)
Atchison, Topeka and
Santa Fe Railroad

Hebron 121 Station Hebron Parkway and Multi-family 1875 1,100 units completed
Lakeside Circle

Uptown Village S Kealy and Lily Ln Multi-family 70 65 units completed

(Townhomes)
Walters Street 125 S. Walters Multi-family 19 5 Units completed
(Townhomes)

Tower Bay Lofts 3000 N Stemmons Multi-family 308 Under Construction
Freeway

Highland Terraces North side of Multi-family 32 16 units completed
Highland Dr, East of (Townhomes)
Denton Tap Rd

Lofts at Old Town North Side of E. Multi-Family 368 N/A

Station College St.,
approximately 940 ft
East of N. Kealy Ave.

Fireside Village College Parkway and Single-family 33 6 units completed
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial Policies—The City of Lewisville has adopted (with City Council approval) formal
written financial policies and administrative directives. These include, among others, policies and
directives for Audit, Revenue Management, Expenditure Control, Financial Reserve/Fund Balance
Levels, Debt Management, Post-Issuance Compliance and Event Disclosure for Tax-Exempt
Obligations, Investments, and Budget Transfers. Policies and directives are reviewed and amended
regularly.

Accounting Procedures and Budgetary Controls—The City’s accounting records for general
governmental funds are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues being recorded
when available and measurable, and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are
received, and the liabilities are incurred. Accounting records for the City’s water and sewer utility
and other proprietary activities are maintained on an accrual basis.

The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Budgetary control is maintained at the
fund level with encumbrances entered at the time a purchase requisition is approved. Open
encumbrances are recorded as assignments of fund balance as of September 30 of each year, and
the subsequent year’s budget is increased in December or January through a supplemental
appropriation approved by City Council to reflect these carried-forward encumbrances. Unspent
and unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

The budgetary process begins each year with the preparation of both current and proposed year
revenue and expenditure estimates by the City’s financial management staff with input from each
City department. Budgets are reviewed by the City Manager who then makes final decisions and
submits a recommended budget to the City Council. The proposed budget is reviewed extensively
by the City Council, a process that includes a Charter-mandated public hearing, in addition to a
work session, which is open to the public. The City Charter requires adoption of the City budget
prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.

While the budget is developed and controlled at the departmental level, appropriations are made
at the fund level. An ordinance establishes the budget for operating expenditures, debt service
payments and use of reserves, while a separate ordinance establishes the property tax rate.

As part of each year’s budget development process, departments are required to update revenue
and expenditure estimates for the current fiscal year. These estimates are reviewed by the Director
of Strategic Services, the City Manager, and the City Council concurrent with review of the
proposed budget. This re-estimated budget may require a supplemental appropriation and, if so,
such supplemental appropriation is approved by ordinance adopted by the City Council.
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During the course of the fiscal year, expenditure controls are maintained by each department
director with overall review exercised by the Director of Strategic Services and the City Manager.
Monthly revenue and departmental expenditure reports are generated by an automated
management accounting system and provide expenditure totals and encumbrances at the line-item
level for the most recently completed month, as well as a year-to-date total, and an actual versus
planned rate of expenditure. Major expenditure requests are reviewed by the Director of Strategic
Services prior to the encumbrance of funds.

Constant review of revenue and expenditure trends is maintained with specific responsibility
assigned to the Director of Strategic Services. Recommendations for corrective action are made
to the City Manager (and to the City Council, if appropriate) as needed to ensure the integrity of
the adopted budget.

Tax Rates—All eligible property within the City is subject to assessment, levy, and collection by
the City of a continuing, direct ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal
and interest on outstanding bonds within the limits prescribed by law, and the payment of operation
and maintenance costs as approved by the City Council. Under State law and provisions of the
City Charter, the City is limited to a maximum tax rate of $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation. As
shown below, the tax rate adopted by the City Council has historically been substantially lower
than the maximum provided by law.

The allocation of the property tax levy by purpose (General Fund operations and Debt Service) for
fiscal year 2019-20 and the preceding five fiscal years is reflected in the following table:

Purpose 2019-2020 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
General Fund 0.320981  0.313766  0.318766  0.318766  0.318766  0.318766
Debt Service Fund 0.122320  0.122320  0.117320  0.117320  0.117320  0.117320
Total Tax Rate 0.443301  0.436086  0.436086  0.436086  0.436086  0.436086

Tax Appraisal/Collection Responsibilities—Under Texas law enacted in 1979 and subsequent
revisions to the State Property Tax Code, the appraised value of taxable property in Lewisville is
established by the Central Appraisal District of the county in which the property exists. The City
of Lewisville’s jurisdiction is predominately in Denton County, but also extends into Dallas
County. Therefore, both the Denton Central Appraisal District and the Dallas Central Appraisal
District provide values to the City based upon county lines. The City of Lewisville and other
taxing jurisdictions in the counties provide a pro rata share of the budgeted expenditures incurred
by the respective appraisal district based upon individual levy. In fiscal year 2018-19, the City’s
payments to the districts for appraisal services were $277,463, an increase of $27,255, from the
amount paid by the City in 2017-18. Since October 1997, the City has contracted with Denton
County for tax collection services. The 2018-19 cost was $34,538.
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Long-Term Financial Planning—The City prepares a series of multi-year financial plans and
forecasts that enable the City to reasonably predict future impacts on the government’s financial
position. For its two largest funds, the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Utility Fund, a
five-year financial plan is prepared in addition to a five-year street and drainage program and a
five-year water and sewer capital improvement project plan. In the age of rapid technological
advances, a five-year strategic technology plan is prepared as well.

Debt Administration—Two ratios traditionally used to analyze the debt structure of
municipalities are presented below. Revenue debt has been excluded since service and user charges
made by utility system customers are used to retire such debt and no ad valorem tax proceeds are
used for utility revenue bond debt service.

Outstanding General Obligation, Tax Notes and Certificates of

Obligations at 9-30-19 (Net of Debt Service) $134,336,314
Estimated Population 105,640
General Debt per Capita $1,245
Net General Debt per Assessed Value 1.29%

The City’s underlying bond ratings at September 30, 2019 were as follows:

General Obligation Revenue
Standard & Poor’s AAA AAA
Fitch Ratings AAA AAA

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit—According to Section 3.14 of the City Charter of the City of Lewisville, an
annual independent audit is required to be made of the financial records of the City by a Public
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant selected by the City Council. The City of Lewisville
has engaged the firm of Weaver, L.L.P. and the opinion is included in this report.

It should be noted that the auditors included all funds in their audit, performed their audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and stated that, in their opinion, the
statements herein present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City at
September 30, 2019, and the changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for
the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Certificate of Achievement—The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States
and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
to the City of Lewisville for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended
September 30, 2018. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial
reports.
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In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Lewisville has
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last 30 consecutive years (fiscal years ended
1989-2018). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Acknowledgements—The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Special
appreciation is given to these staff members whose effort was instrumental in the publication of
this comprehensive report.

Respectfully submitted,

C L DL

Donna Barron
City Manager

S (A
David Erb
Director of Finance
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Weaver Austin | Conroe | Dallas | Fort Worth | Houston
, Los Angeles | Midland | New York City | San Antonio
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor,
City Council, and City Manager of
City of Lewisville, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lewisville (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.

2300 North Field Street, Suite 1000 | Dallas, Texas 75201
Main: 972.490.1970 | Fax:972.702.8321
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The Honorable Mayor,
City Council, and City Manager of
City of Lewisville, Texas

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City,
as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis (pages 22 to 33), TMRS pension schedules (pages 95 to 97) and
OPEB liability trust fund schedules (pages 98 to 100) be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The Honorable Mayor,
City Council, and City Manager of
City of Lewisville, Texas

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 9,
2020, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Cosmen and) Didctl LLE.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 9, 2020
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

This discussion and analysis of the City of Lewisville’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Please
read it in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and the basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Lewisville exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2019 by $766,011,026 (net position). Of this amount, $87,998,206
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

= The City of Lewisville’s total net position increased by $38,914,735 for the year ended
September 30, 2019 which was due to an increase in governmental activities net position
of $19,577,765 and business-type activities net position of $19,336,970.

= Asof September 30, 2019, the City of Lewisville’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $162,058,693, an increase of $34,794,032 in comparison with the
prior fiscal year.

= At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$35,634,844 or approximately 42.1 percent of total general fund expenditures.

» The City’s total outstanding debt increased by $59,845,000 during the current fiscal year
primarily due to issuance of debt for capital projects.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Lewisville’s basic
financial statements. The City of Lewisville’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of Lewisville’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. The statement
of net position presents information on all of the City of Lewisville’s assets and deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Lewisville is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of net position combines and consolidates governmental funds current financial
resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. Other
non-financial factors should also be taken into consideration, such as changes in the City’s property
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure (i.e. roads, bridges, drainage improvements,
alleys, etc.), to assess the overall health or financial condition of the City.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All of the current year revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods; for
example, uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave. Both the statement of net
position and the statement of activities are prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into three kinds
of activities:

= Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the
police, fire, library, community development and public services, information technology
services, parks and recreation, municipal court, tourism, and general administration. Property
taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees finance most of these activities.

= Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s water and sewer system is reported here.

= Component units — The City includes nine separate legal entities in its report —Lewisville
Housing Finance Corporation, Lewisville Industrial Development Authority, Inc., Lewisville
Parks and Library Development Corporation, Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number 1
(Lewisville Old Town), Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number 2, Lewisville Local
Government Corporation, Health Benefit Trust, Lewisville Crime Control and Prevention
District, and Lewisville Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District.
Although legally separate, these component units are important because the City is financially
accountable for them.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not
the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants.
However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants,
or other money. The City’s two types of funds — Governmental and Proprietary — utilize different
accounting approaches.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Governmental funds — The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method
identified as the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. By comparing
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. The
relationships or differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are detailed in a reconciliation
following the fund financial statements.

The City of Lewisville maintains twenty-three governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
General Capital Projects Fund, and Castle Hills PID Capital Projects Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other nineteen governmental funds are combined into
a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds — The City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside
customers or to other units within the City. These services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a
component of proprietary funds) are identical to the business-type activities that are reported in
the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash
flows, for proprietary funds. The internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds)
are utilized to report activities that provide supplies and services for the City’s other programs and
activities. Because these services benefit both governmental as well as business type functions,
they have been included in both the governmental and business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

The City of Lewisville maintains two enterprise funds to account for water, sewer, and stormwater
drainage services provided to the City’s retail and wholesale customers. All activities associated
with providing such services are accounted for in this fund, including administration, operation,
maintenance, debt service, capital improvements, billing and collection. The City’s intent is that
costs of providing the services to the general public on a continuing basis are financed through
user charges in a manner similar to a private business enterprise.
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The City of Lewisville maintains three internal service funds to account for funds accumulated to
self-insure for health, liability, property and casualty losses, worker compensation claims, life
insurance, long-term disability, vehicle, technology, and equipment replacement and fleet
maintenance. Individual fund data for each of these non-major business-type funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City as Trustee

Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net
Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The activities of these funds are excluded from
the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its
operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for
its intended purpose.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information and a statistical section that is intended to assist users in
assessing the economic condition of the City.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE - Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The City’s combined net position was $766,011,026 as of September 30, 2019. Analyzing the net
position of governmental and business-type activities separately, the business type activities net
position is $293,926,094. This analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in general
revenues (chart) and significant expenses of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (80.4 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (i.e., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure) less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. $62,208,960 or 8.1 percent of net position was restricted
for specific purposes.
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Table 1: Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets $ 266,067,189 § 220,200,870 $ 98,556,726 $ 77,635,789 § 364,623,915 § 297,836,659
Capital assets 442,591,627 408,801,474 264,476,591 252,536,583 707,068,218 661,338,057
Total assets 708,658,816 629,002,344 363,033,317 330,172,372 1,071,692,133 959,174,716
Deferred outflows 20,876,725 7,802,235 2,605,886 1,301,903 23,482,611 9,104,138
Noncurrent liabilities 194,864,105 123,975,511 66,042,304 51,132,339 260,906,409 175,107,850
Other liabilities 60,726,486 51,537,110 5,471,231 4,894,082 66,197,717 56,431,192
Total liabilities 255,590,591 175,512,621 71,513,535 56,026,421 327,104,126 231,539,042
Deferred nflows 1,860,018 8,784,791 199,574 858,730 2,059,592 9,643,521
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 363,168,314 351,840,695 252,635,546 237,299,149 615,803,860 589,139,844
Restricted for debt service 26,468,734 28,947,444 6,647,801 6,710,407 33,116,535 35,657,851
Restricted for capital projects 17,065,618 21,788,988 - - 17,065,618 21,788,988
Restricted for special revenue 12,026,807 13,375,520 - - 12,026,807 13,375,520
Unrestricted 53,355,459 36,554,520 34,642,747 30,579,568 87,998,206 67,134,088

Total net position

$§ 472,084,932

$ 452,507,167

$ 293,926,094

$ 274,589,124

$§ 766,011,026

$ 727,096,291

Governmental Activities

The City’s general revenues and transfers increased when compared to the prior year by 12.2
percent or $11,743,348. The primary reasons for this increase were property tax revenues from
assessed values of property, transfers in from the water and sewer utility fund for payments in lieu
of property taxes, and investment income from interest from investments held by the City. Taxable
assessed valuation of properties in the City increased by $850.5 million or 9.1% as compared to
the prior year while the tax rate remained the same at $0.436086 per $100 assessed valuation.
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Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $19,577,765. The key elements of this

increase are as follows:
Table 2: Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for service $ 18,538,586 $ 18,364,223 $§ 37,746,194 $ 37,010,278 $ 56,284,780 $ 55,374,501

Operating grants and contributions 4,177,873 2,640,360 - - 4,177,873 2,640,360

Capital grants and contributions 18,499,358 24,196,775 13,342,157 16,055,699 31,841,515 40,252,474
General revenues:

Property taxes 46,153,866 42,750,384 - - 46,153,866 42,750,384

Other taxes 50,710,323 48,252,287 - - 50,710,323 48,252,287

Other 6,753,144 3,144,470 2,518,045 487,420 9,271,189 3,631,890

Total revenues 144,833,150 139,348,499 53,606,396 53,553,397 198,439,546 192,901,896

Expenses:

General government 26,035,465 20,036,407 - - 26,035,465 20,036,407

Culture, parks and recreation 11,787,717 14,001,134 - - 11,787,717 14,001,134

Public safety 57,524,595 54,104,824 - - 57,524,595 54,104,824

Public and development services 29,873,232 29,576,155 29,700,847 30,244,255 59,574,079 59,820,410

Interest on long-term debt 4,602,955 3,194,723 - - 4,602,955 3,194,723

Total expenses 129,823,964 120,913,243 29,700,847 30,244,255 159,524,811 151,157,498

Increase in

net position before transfers 15,009,186 18,435,256 23,905,549 23,309,142 38,914,735 41,744,398
Transfers 4,568,579 2,295,423 (4,568,579) (2,295,423) - -
Increase in net position 19,577,765 20,730,679 19,336,970 21,013,719 38,914,735 41,744,398
Net position - beginning 452,507,167 432,557,865 274,589,124 253,653,810 727,096,291 686,211,675
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (781,377) - (78,405) - (859,782)
Net position - ending $472,084,932 $452,507,167 $293,926,094 $274,589,124 $766,011,026 $ 727,096,291

General revenues and operating grants and contributions increased $11.0 million over the previous
year and is discussed in more detail below under the General Fund sections. Capital grants and
contributions decreased $5.7 million from 2018 mainly due to a decrease in contributions related
to Castle Hills.

The most significant governmental expense for the City is payroll and personnel-related cost. For
the year, these costs were $73.8 million or 56.8 percent of total expenses. This was a increase in
payroll cost from prior year of $5.0 million due to an increase in personnel and merit salary
increases. Payroll costs were closely monitored and along with vacancies, came in $2,625,542 less
than originally budgeted.
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For activities, public safety incurred expenses of $57,524,595. These expenses were offset by
charges for services revenue of $8,051,294, which were collected from a variety of sources, with
the largest being from fines, forfeitures and ambulance fees. The largest portion of public safety
is the cost of personnel which is $49,221,453. Other significant governmental expenses for the
City include public and development services which incurred $29,873,232 in expenses, of which
$10,229,826 represents personnel charges and the general government activity which incurred
$26,035,465 in expenses, of which $8,742,100 represents personnel charges. General government
encompasses mayor and council, administration, legal, finance, human resources, information
technology services, community relations and tourism departments. The Parks and Recreation
Department incurred $11,787,717 in expenses, of which $5,660,452 represents personnel charges.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $19,336,970. The increase in net
position is the result of several factors, including the following:

= The City’s water and sewer system recorded charges for services of $33,836,347. This revenue
source was a slight decrease of $176,668 from fiscal year 2018. A new stormwater utility was
formed and revenues began January 1, 2018. Revenues for this new utility in fiscal year 2018
amounted to $3,909,847 for the fiscal year 2019. This was an increase in stormwater utility of
$912,584 due to the fiscal year 2019 being the first full year of service. Non-cash capital
contributions from developers and cash receipts in the form of development impact fees
amounted to $13,342,157. This revenue decreased $2,713,542 from 2018 due to an decrease in
the amount of dedicated Castle Hills infrastructure as well as an increase in water and sewer
capital recovery collections. Developer contributions are public improvement infrastructure
projects that are completed by the developer and dedicated to the City. The charges for services
exceeded expenses by $7.8 million.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2019, the City had $707.1 million invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, bridges, and water and
sewer lines.

Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Improvements $ 249,646,789 § 255642814 § 233220 $ 283923 § 249,880,009 $ 255,926,737
Land 67,685,730 64,985,248 2,502,137 2,502,137 70,187,867 67,487,385
Buildings 43,928,309 45,657,856 1,332,988 1,387,417 45,261,297 47,045,273
Machinery & equipment 19.417,929 19,673,733 1,120,968 1,184,150 20,538,897 20,857,883
Construction in progress 61,912,870 22,841,823 24,250,267 12,144,392 86,163,137 34,986,215
Water system - 138,905,053 140,541,167 138,905,053 140,541,167
Sewer system - - 89,682,334 90,641,484 89,682,334 90,641,484
Stormwater system - - 6,449,624 3,851,913 6,449,624 3,851,913
Totals $ 442,591,627 § 408801474 § 264,476,591 § 252,536,583 $§ 707,068218 $ 661,338,057

Major capital asset additions for 2018-2019 include:

Developer Dedicated I/S - Street Paving $ 3,594,506
Developer Dedicated I/S-Storm Drainage 2,540,740
Developer Dedicated I/S-Water 2,177,697
Concrete Improvements 1,955,904
Developer Dedicated I/S-Sewer 1,683,247
Pierce Velocity 95' Aerial Truck 1,341,921
Donated ROW - Developer 1,316,221
Sidewalk Improvements 1,124,770
Duwe Land Purchase 783,865

$ 16,518,872

The City’s fiscal year 2018-19 capital improvement program authorizes it to spend $164 million
for capital projects. These improvements are in the following categories: water and sewer, streets,
drainage, park, municipal/technology, facility, and public safety. The aforementioned amount of
$164 million is made up of both current year appropriations, as well as carryover amounts
appropriated but not yet expended.
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To support the capital improvement program, funds are obtained from the issuance of bonds,
interest earnings, transfers from operating funds, developer contributions, or a combination of
these sources. To illustrate, the Timber Creek Aerial Sewer Project for 2018-19 consists of
$114,791 in cash funding coming from Water/Sewer Utility cash and $2.6 million coming from
water revenue bond proceeds.

Additional information on the City of Lewisville’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the
Notes to Financial Statements included in this report.

Debt

At year end, the City had $193.9 million in general obligation, tax notes, certificates of obligation,
and revenue bonds outstanding as compared to $134.0 million at the end of the prior fiscal year,
an increase of 44.7 percent as shown in Table 4.

Table 4
Outstanding Debt at Year End
(in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
General obligation bonds, tax notesand  $ 123,280 $ 79,905  § -3 - $ 123280 $ 79,905
certificates of obligation
(backed by the City)
General obligation and revenue bonds - - 55,090 43,305 55,090 43,305
(backed by fee revenues)
Premium 11,056 7,261 4,463 3,573 15,519 10,834
Totals $ 134336 $§ 87,166 $§ 59553 § 46878 § 193,889 § 134,044

For more detailed information on long-term debt activity, refer to Note 11 in the Notes to Financial
Statements.

The City’s General Obligation Bonds and Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds carry an AAA rating
from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings. Both of these entities are national rating agencies.
The City is permitted by Article XI, Section 5, of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up
to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services including the payment
of principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt. The current ratio of tax-supported
debt to assessed value of all taxable property is 1.29%.
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THE CITY’S FUNDS

At the close of the City’s fiscal year on September 30, 2019, the governmental funds of the City
reported a combined fund balance of $162.1 million, a $34.8 million increase from the previous
year, mainly due bond proceeds in the City’s General Capital Projects Funds reserved for ongoing
capital projects.

The City’s General Fund balance was $36.7 million which was $0.1 million more than the prior
year fund balance. Property and sales tax collections increased along with planned budgeted
expenditures. These increases are offset by increases in transfers to capital project funds. Current
year’s activity resulted in a positive variance of $9.4 million when compared to the final amended
budgeted increase of $27.3 million. Significant budgetary variances between the final amended
budget and the actual results can be summarized as follows:

e Tax revenue was $2,415,004 more than estimated. The primary reason was sales tax
revenue, which was $2,709,116 more than budgeted due to a strong economy and a
conservative budgeting policy which sets budget at the prior year’s estimate for this
revenue. Net changes, both positive and negative, in other Tax revenues resulted in the
positive variance from budget.

e Revenue from Charges for Service was $1,240,465 higher than budgeted primarily due to
fees from Police and Fire charges to Castle Hills totaling $983,495 and ambulance fees
coming in above budget by $409,101. Net changes, both positive and negative, in other
Charges for Service resulted in the positive variance from budget.

e When combined, Parks and Recreation, Public Services, Public Safety, Development
Services, and General Government departments had lower than expected expenditures
resulting in a favorable variance of $3,810,445. This variance accounts for 88 percent of
the savings from budget and is primarily due to salary savings from employee vacancies.

The City’s Water and Sewer Fund net position of $275.6 million increased by $10.5 million over
the prior year net position balance. The increase is primarily due to operating revenues and
dedicated infrastructure continuing to remain well above operating expenses.

The newly created Stormwater Fund experienced an increase of net position of $9.5 million.
Revenues are being accumulated for upcoming stormwater or drainage projects.

The City’s Internal Service Funds net position of $21.3 million increased by $4.6 million from the
prior year net position balance. This increase was mainly the result of premium collections in
excess of claims and other expenses for the Health Benefit Trust Fund. The Maintenance and
Replacement Fund experienced a $1.9 million increase in net position mainly due to lease
payments accumulating for future planned capital replacement costs.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During fiscal year 2018-19, The City Council amended the budget for the General Fund for five
purposes; for the routine supplemental completed each year for the prior year encumbrances
(purchases) that overlap into the next fiscal year (along with prepaid items); to appropriate changes
the Council reviewed at mid-year; for end of year adjustments required such as debt service
payments related to a bond refunding; to appropriate funding for a 50" year anniversary pop
festival; and to appropriate funding for professional services related to Old Town Branding. Staff
reviewed the supplemental appropriations and determined that reserves were sufficient to
recommend approval. Total net amendments to expenditures for the year were $449,939. Staff
reviewed the supplemental appropriations and determined that reserves were sufficient to
recommend approval.

Significant budget variances (positive) between the final budget amendment and actual results
were seen in 6 of the 16 cost centers in the General Fund. These positive variances were primarily
due to salary savings from employee vacancies and savings in contractual services. Spending in
each of the 16 cost centers was at or below budget. The largest variance was seen in the area of
General Government where savings from budget totaled $926,670. Of this amount, $650,796 or
70.2 percent were from savings in contractual obligations.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year
2020 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities. One of those
factors is the economy. The City has experienced growth in local business and development
activity over the past several years.

The economic climate in Lewisville is stable with low unemployment. This, in combination with
the City’s proximity to two major highways, the Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, and an
active economic development program, have made Lewisville a leader in the regional retail
market. The City continues to attract new and existing companies due to the strategy of working
diligently with businesses on relocation incentives.

These factors were taken into consideration when adopting the General Fund budget for fiscal year
2020. The combined budget appropriation for fiscal year 2019-20 totals $190,997,038 million
for thirty operating funds. Another $18,286,349 million is appropriated in the City’s internal
service funds.

Ad valorem tax revenue is determined by two major factors: the total assessed value established
by the Denton County and Dallas County Central Appraisal Districts and the tax rate established
by the Lewisville City Council. The Lewisville City Council chose to increase the overall tax rate
to 0.443301 with the O&M portion increasing to 0.320981 and the 1&S portion remaining constant
at 0.122320. Property values increased $967 million or 9.48% from the prior year. This brings the
property tax revenue budgeted for FY 2019-20 to $37.123 million, making it the single largest
General Fund revenue source.
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The General Fund’s second largest revenue source in fiscal year 2019-20 is sales tax receipts. Due
to the volatility of the sales tax revenue source, the City has been very conservative in projecting
sales tax revenue. This conservative philosophy was formalized in the City’s written Revenue
Policy adopted by the City Council. Under this policy sales tax revenue budget for subsequent
fiscal years is limited to the estimated receipts for the current fiscal year. This practice effectively
mitigates, to a large degree, the volatile nature of the sales tax revenue source. The City’s budgeted
sales tax revenue is $30.720 million.

Budgeted operating expenditures in the General Fund are expected to increase $8.195 million from
the 2018-19 fiscal year re-estimated budget. These expenditures are offset by increases in revenue.
The only change in fund balance is the $6.27 million in transfers out for planned, one-time
expenditures ($8.464M last fiscal year).

As for the City’s business type activities, the City budgeted a decrease of $3.552 million for the
Water and Sewer Fund’s net position. This decrease is due to budgeting transfers to capital
improvement projects for water and sewer line replacements as well as for economic development
agreement liabilities.

Water and sewer rates were reviewed by the City Council for fiscal year 2019-20. Council elected
to increase rates by 1.0% due primarily to receiving an increased rate from Dallas Water Ultilities.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and reflect the City’s accountability
for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the Director of Finance, City of Lewisville, 151 West Church Street,
Lewisville, Texas 75057.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Primary Government
Governmental Business- Component
Activities Type Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash $ 5,727,464 $ 932,414 $ 6,659,878 $ 518,569
Investments 216,746,797 34,596,367 251,343,164 19,654,356
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts 8,258,930 5,638,716 13,897,646 -
Taxes 8,963,161 - 8,963,161 1,360,217
Interest 674,373 131,237 805,610 63,798
Other 386,720 10,310 397,030 10,698
Internal balances (524,881) 524,881 - -
Note receivable from component units 24,105,000 - 24,105,000 -
Inventory of supplies 168,613 - 168,613 -
Prepaid items 1,561,012 69,675 1,630,687 5,383
Restricted assets
Cash - 1,452,213 1,452,213 -
Investments - 55,040,457 55,040,457 -
Interest receivable - 160,456 160,456 -
Capital assets
Non-depreciable 129,598,600 26,752,404 156,351,004 63,500
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation) 312,993,027 237,724,187 550,717,214 5,756,071
Total assets 708,658,816 363,033,317 1,071,692,133 27,432,592
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 734,314 558,626 1,292,940 -
Pension contributions after measurement date 6,340,127 633,557 6,973,684 111,523
OPEB contributions after measurement date 108,787 10,951 119,738 -
Difference in expected and actual pension experience 1,322,012 133,734 1,455,746 22,630
Difference in expected and actual OPEB experience 86,098 8,675 94,773 -
Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension assets 12,285,387 1,260,343 13,545,730 200,885
Total deferred outflows of resources 20,876,725 2,605,886 23,482,611 335,038
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,229,363 2,664,973 15,894,336 831,474
Incurred but not reported claim reserve 1,474,745 - 1,474,745 -
Accrued liabilities 2,998,440 331,637 3,330,077 66,867
Accrued interest payable 504,214 259,956 764,170 133,080
Contracts and retainable payable 2,351,829 153,533 2,505,362 -
Deposits payable 31,285 1,878,053 1,909,338 -
Unearned revenue 36,146,757 - 36,146,757 -
Escrow payable 3,989,853 183,079 4,172,932 -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 18,090,329 5,414,074 23,504,403 2,583,646
Due in more than one year 176,773,776 60,628,230 237,402,006 22,172,741
Total liabilities 255,590,591 71,513,535 327,104,126 25,787,808
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference in expected and actual pension experience 1,322,720 145,496 1,468,216 16,193
Difference in expected and actual OPEB experience 323,271 32,595 355,866 -
Difference in projected and actual earnings on OPEB assets 214,027 21,483 235,510 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,860,018 199,574 2,059,592 16,193
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 363,168,314 252,635,546 615,803,860 664,571
Restricted for
Debt service 26,468,734 6,647,801 33,116,535 -
Capital projects 17,065,618 - 17,065,618 -
Special revenue 12,026,807 - 12,026,807 -
Tax increment reinvestment zone - - - 3,440,261
Unrestricted 53,355,459 34,642,747 87,998,206 (2,141,203)
Total net position $472,084,932 $ 293,926,094 $ 766,011,026 $ 1,963,629

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Functions/Programs

Primary Government

Governmental activities
General government
Culture, parks, and recreation
Public safety
Public & development services
Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Water and sewer
Stormwater
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component Units
Tax increment reinvestment zone1

LPLDC (4B) fund
Total component units

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 26,035,465 $ 3,851,605 $ - $ 1,629,400
11,787,717 2,738,902 507,334 -
57,524,595 8,051,294 1,242,757 -
29,873,232 3,896,785 1,478,537 16,869,958
4,602,955 - 949,245 -
129,823,964 18,538,586 4,177,873 18,499,358
29,550,735 33,836,347 - 8,787,066
150,112 3,909,847 - 4,555,091
29,700,847 37,746,194 - 13,342,157
159,524,811 56,284,780 4,177,873 31,841,515
628,145 - - -
6,827,836 192,302 - 160,000
$ 7,455,981 $ 192,302 $ - $ 160,000

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Franchise taxes
Hotel motel taxes
Penalties and interest
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position
NET POSITION - beginning

NET POSITION - ending

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (20,554,460) $ - (20,554,460) $ -
(8,541,481) - (8,541,481) -
(48,230,544) - (48,230,544) -
(7,627,952) - (7,627,952) -
(3,653,710) - (3,653,710) -
(88,608,147) - (88,608,147) -

- 13,072,678 13,072,678 -

- 8,314,826 8,314,826 -

- 21,387,504 21,387,504 -
(88,608,147) 21,387,504 (67,220,643) -

- - - (628,145)

- - - (6,475,534)

- - - (7,103,679)

45,945,364 - 45,945,364 1,689,687

40,338,971 - 40,338,971 8,195,329
1,064,061 - 1,064,061 -
6,789,508 - 6,789,508 -
2,517,783 - 2,517,783 -
208,502 - 208,502 -

6,220,905 2,448,787 8,669,692 587,385
532,239 69,258 601,497 -
4,568,579 (4,568,579) - -

108,185,912 (2,050,534) 106,135,378 10,372,401

19,577,765 19,336,970 38,914,735 3,268,722

452,507,167 274,589,124 727,096,291 (1,305,093)

$ 472,084,932 $ 293,926,094 766,011,026 $ 1,963,629

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 3
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
General Other Total
Debt Service  Castle Hills PID Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Capital Project Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 816,798 $ 71,431 $ - $ 3,630,589 $ 447,966 $ 4,966,784
Investments 30,690,718 2,707,301 19,716,194 137,603,368 11,525,237 202,242,818
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Taxes 7,571,563 80,380 - - 1,311,218 8,963,161
Accounts 3,353,861 - - 2,923,305 1,399,016 7,676,182
Unbilled accounts 312,380 - - - - 312,380
Interest 107,936 8,836 22,747 435,603 50,174 625,296
Court 250,248 - - - - 250,248
Other 289,384 - - 97,336 - 386,720
Due from other funds 1,024,625 - - - 2,495 1,027,120
Note receivable from component units - 24,105,000 - - - 24,105,000
Prepaid items 451,650 - - 6,463 881,068 1,339,181
Total assets $44,869,163 $26,972,948 $ 19,738,941 $ 144,696,664 $ 15,617,174 $251,894,890
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 2,733,341 $ - $ 3,709,396 $ 5,819,050 $ 655,330 $ 12,917,117
Accrued liabilities 2,716,475 - - 10,698 240,599 2,967,772
Deposits payable 9,985 - - - 21,300 31,285
Unearned revenue - - - 35,874,124 272,633 36,146,757
Money held in escrow 62,089 - - 3,893,121 34,643 3,989,853
Retainage - - - 2,351,829 - 2,351,829
Due to other funds 595,303 - - - 1,024,625 1,619,928
Total liabilities 6,117,193 - 3,709,396 47,948,822 2,249,130 60,024,541
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable resources 2,039,317 24,185,380 - 2,799,512 787,447 29,811,656
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,039,317 24,185,380 - 2,799,512 787,447 29,811,656
Fund balances
Nonspendable 451,650 - - 6,463 881,068 1,339,181
Restricted for
Debt service - 2,787,568 - - - 2,787,568
Capital projects - - 16,029,545 64,254,928 40,595 80,325,068
Other purposes - - - - 11,082,938 11,082,938
Committed to
Capital projects - - - 3,527,738 - 3,627,738
Other purposes - - - - 1,238,923 1,238,923
Assigned to
Capital projects - - - 26,159,201 - 26,159,201
Other purposes 626,159 - - - - 626,159
Unassigned 35,634,844 - - - (662,927) 34,971,917
Total fund balances 36,712,653 2,787,568 16,029,545 93,948,330 12,580,597 162,058,693
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $44,869,163 $26,972,948 $ 19,738,941 $ 144,696,664 $ 15,617,174 $251,894,890

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 4
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total fund balances, governmental funds $162,058,693

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 435,629,011

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources;
therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in the governmental funds
balance sheet. (504,214)

Revenues earned but not available within sixty days of the year end
are not recognized as revenue on the fund financial statements. 29,811,656

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements. Amount
is less $107,919 for liability in internal service funds already included below. (194,756,186)

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources associated with the net pension and OPEB
liability are not reported in governmental funds. This is the net effect of the deferred
inflows and outflows of resources. 18,282,393

For debt refunding, the difference between the acquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the debt has been deferred and amortized in the government-
wide financial statements. 734,314

Aninternal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, including insurance and vehicle fleet management, to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the government-wide statement of net position, net of amounts
charged to enterprise funds of $524,881. 20,829,265

Total net position, governmental activities $472,084,932

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 5
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
General Other Total
Debt Service Castle Hills PID Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Capital Project Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property and other taxes $72,609,850 $12,900,943 $ - $ - $ 11,246,392 $ 96,757,185
License and permits 3,328,993 - - - - 3,328,993
Intergovernmental 26,194 3,509,245 - 1,847,790 1,649,619 7,032,848
Charges for services 9,706,466 - - - 1,930 9,708,396
Recreation 1,761,741 - - - 837,022 2,598,763
Fines 2,709,258 - - - 197,023 2,906,281
Investment earnings 1,004,801 118,858 331,719 3,790,053 491,145 5,736,576
Contributions and donations - - 7,984,000 - 577,992 8,561,992
Miscellaneous 455,064 391 - 78,025 15,145 548,625
Total Revenues 91,602,367 16,529,437 8,315,719 5,715,868 15,016,268 137,179,659
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 12,524,873 - - - 4,029,935 16,554,808
Culture and recreation 8,567,772 - - - 882,325 9,450,097
Public safety 49,098,109 - - - 7,749,203 56,847,312
Public & development services 14,149,089 - - - 702,512 14,851,601
Stormwater/environment/sustainability - - - - 12,224 12,224
Debt Service
Principal - 11,680,000 - - - 11,680,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 4,729,458 - 637,354 - 5,366,812
Capital outlay 261,696 - 11,131,803 39,614,980 1,409,353 52,417,832
Total expenditures 84,601,539 16,409,458 11,131,803 40,252,334 14,785,552 167,180,686
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 7,000,828 119,979 (2,816,084) (34,536,466) 230,716 (30,001,027)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 4,717,633 - - 13,936,476 137,220 18,791,329
Transfers out (11,623,687) - - - (2,299,063) (13,922,750)
Premium (discount) on issuance of bonds - 266,797 - 4,600,855 - 4,867,652
Issuance of general obligation bonds - - - 55,300,000 - 55,300,000
Issuance of refunding bonds - 2,605,000 - - - 2,605,000
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent - (2,846,172) - - - (2,846,172)
Total other financing sources (uses) (6,906,054) 25,625 - 73,837,331 (2,161,843) 64,795,059
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 94,774 145,604 (2,816,084) 39,300,865 (1,931,127) 34,794,032
FUND BALANCES - beginning of year 36,617,879 2,641,964 18,845,629 54,647,465 14,511,724 127,264,661
FUND BALANCES - end of year $36,712,653 $ 2,787,568 $ 16,029,545 $ 93,948,330 $ 12,580,597 $162,058,693

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

EXHIBIT 6

Net change in fund balances, total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Dispositions of
capital assets decrease net position. This amount is the net of increases in governmental activities

capital assets $53,047,021, less dispostions of $383,140 and developers contributions of $7,499,563.

Governmental funds do not recognize assets contributed by developers. However, in the statement of activities
the fair market value of those assets is recognized as revenue, then allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide statement of activities and
changes in net position, but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation
expense is not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and 'similar items when debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount (bond principal payments of $11,680,000 and amortization of premium on debt
issuances net of amortization of deferred loss from prior year refunding bonds of $858,103 less bond proceeds of
$57,905,000 with a premium of $4,867,652 plus amount paid to bond refunding escrow agent of $2,846,172 to

refund $2,850,000 with unamortized premium of $90,908 and deferred loss on refunding of $17,160) decreased

the statement of net position.

Current year changes in the long-term liability for compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The changes in compensated absences
for governmental funds increased governmental activities expense by $838,679 plus the decrease in compensated
compensated absences for internal service fund of $1,328.

Current year changes in the long-term liability for net pension/OPEB benefit obligations do not require the use of

current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The amount represents the
difference between current year deferred inflows, outflows, and liability from prior year. Changes in pension balances
increased statement of activities expenses by $2,804,828 while OPEB balances decreased statement of activities
activities expenses by $142,553.

Current year changes in accrued interest payable do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as the purchase of
equipment and insurance, to individual funds. The change in net position of certain internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities. This is the amount of the change in net position allocated to government activities.

Change in net position, governmental activities

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 34,794,032

45,164,318

7,499,563

(20,669,170)

(47,388,377)

(840,007)

(2,662,275)
(94,246)
(314,242)

4,088,169
$ 19,577,765



CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

EXHIBIT 7

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Property and other taxes $ 69912142 $ 69912142 $ 72,609,850 $ 2,697,708
License and permits 2,458,405 2,656,751 3,328,993 672,242
Intergovernmental 4,626 4,626 26,194 21,568
Charges for services 8,947,651 8,748,705 9,706,466 957,761
Recreation 1,398,844 1,399,444 1,761,741 362,297
Fines 2,843,788 2,843,788 2,709,258 (134,530)
Investment earnings 228,835 228,835 1,004,801 775,966
Miscellaneous 643,678 643,678 455,064 (188,614)
Total revenues 86,437,969 86,437,969 91,602,367 5,164,398
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 4,098,298 4,481,947 3,655,277 926,670
Mayor and council 128,102 128,102 96,263 31,839
Administrative and legal 2,847,871 2,579,588 2,448,824 130,764
Community relations/tourism 810,725 810,725 711,006 99,719
Finance 1,644,951 1,652,451 1,624,235 28,216
Human resources 1,010,673 1,012,493 982,560 29,933
Information technology services 3,123,952 3,126,777 3,106,708 20,069
Parks and recreation 8,489,946 8,419,216 7,983,278 435,938
Arts and cultural events 640,465 643,279 584,494 58,785
Police 26,617,999 26,854,436 25,952,194 902,242
Fire 22,291,658 22,279,026 21,889,720 389,306
Emergency management 206,241 206,262 206,262 -
Municipal court 1,071,092 1,071,092 1,049,933 21,159
Public services 7,615,437 7,601,104 6,938,006 663,098
Development services 7,713,636 7,703,410 7,211,083 492,327
Capital outlay 122,437 313,514 261,696 51,818
Total expenditures 88,433,483 88,883,422 84,601,539 4,281,883
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,995,514) (2,445,453) 7,000,828 9,446,281
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 4,900,491 4,714,159 4,717,633 3,474
Transfers out (10,549,153) (11,635,885) (11,623,687) 12,198
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,648,662) (6,921,726) (6,906,054) 15,672
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (7,644,176) (9,367,179) 94,774 9,461,953
FUND BALANCES - beginning of year 36,617,879 36,617,879 36,617,879 -
FUND BALANCES -end of year $ 28973703 _$ 27250700 _$ 36712653 _$ 9,461,953

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 8
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Enterprise Funds

Water and
Stormwater
Sewer Utility Fund Internal
Utility Fund Y Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 768,255 $ 164,159  § 932,414 $ 760,680
Investments 28,374,566 6,221,801 34,596,367 14,503,979
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Accounts 1,602,235 139,552 1,741,787 20,120
Unbilled trade accounts 3,896,929 - 3,896,929 -
Interest receivable 111,379 19,858 131,237 49,077
Other 10,310 - 10,310 -
Due from other funds - - - 592,808
Inventory of supplies, at cost - - - 168,613
Prepaid items 69,675 - 69,675 221,831
Restricted assets
Cash 1,452,213 - 1,452,213 -
Investments 55,040,457 - 55,040,457 -
Interest receivable 160,456 - 160,456 -
Total current assets 91,486,475 6,545,370 98,031,845 16,317,108
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land 2,502,137 - 2,502,137 -
Land improvements 106,700 - 106,700 -
Buildings 1,810,548 - 1,810,548 -
Other improvements 730,391 - 730,391 440,026
Water system 204,137,214 - 204,137,214 -
Sewer system 141,442,179 - 141,442,179 -
Stormwater System - 6,594,872 6,594,872 -
Machinery and equipment 4,202,957 - 4,202,957 4,914,906
Motor vehicles 435,143 - 435,143 22,739,800
Construction in progress 19,468,644 4,781,623 24,250,267 -
Less accumulated depreciation (121,590,569) (145,248) (121,735,817) (21,132,116)
Total noncurrent assets 253,245,344 11,231,247 264,476,591 6,962,616
Total assets 344,731,819 17,776,617 362,508,436 23,279,724
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 558,626 - 558,626 -
Pension contributions after measurement date 633,557 - 633,557 -
OPEB contributions after measurement date 10,951 - 10,951 -
Difference in expected and actual pension experience 133,734 - 133,734 -
Difference in expected and actual OPEB experience 8,675 - 8,675 -
Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension assets 1,260,343 1,260,343
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,605,886 - 2,605,886 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accounts payable 273,813 - 273,813 -
Deposits payable 1,878,053 - 1,878,053 -
Accrued interest payable 259,956 - 259,956 -
Contracts and retainage payable 153,533 - 153,533 -
Escrow payable 183,079 - 183,079 -
Current maturities of bonds payable 5,010,000 - 5,010,000 -
Accounts payable 2,370,650 20,510 2,391,160 312,246
Incurred but not reported claim reserve - - - 1,474,745
Accrued liabilities 331,637 - 331,637 30,668
Compensated absences 404,074 - 404,074 61,333
Total current liabilities 10,864,795 20,510 10,885,305 1,878,992
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable 54,494,840 - 54,494,840 -
Compensated absences 306,918 - 306,918 46,586
Net pension liability 5,810,895 - 5,810,895 -
Net OPEB liability 15,577 - 15,577 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 60,628,230 - 60,628,230 46,586
Total liabilities 71,493,025 20,510 71,513,535 1,925,578
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference in expected and actual pension experience 145,496 - 145,496 -
Difference in expected and actual OPEB experience 32,595 - 32,595 -
Difference in projected and actual earnings on OPEB assets 21,483 - 21,483 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 199,574 - 199,574 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 241,404,299 11,231,247 252,635,546 6,962,616
Restricted for bond requirements 6,647,801 - 6,647,801 -
Unrestricted 27,593,006 6,524,860 34,117,866 14,391,530
Total net position $ 275,645,106 $ 17,756,107 $ 293,401,213 $ 21,354,146

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

42



CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 9
RECONCILIATION OF ENTERPRISE FUNDS STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total net position, enterprise funds $293,401,213

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Aninternal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities, including insurance and vehicle fleet management, to individual funds. The

assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental

activities in the government-wide statement of net position. The amount shown as

the accumulated amount is allocated to business type activities since the adoption of

GASB 34. 524,881

Total net position, business-type activities $ 293,926,094

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

EXHIBIT 10

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services, net of reimbursements
Personal services and administrative
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings

Interest expense and fiscal agent fees
Gain on disposal of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Transfers in
Transfers out
Contributions from developers
Contributions - impact fees

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

Stormwater Utility

Internal Service

Utility Fund Fund Total Funds

$ 33,836,347 $ 3,909,847 $ 37,746,194 $ 20,294,840
69,258 - 69,258 851
33,905,605 3,909,847 37,815,452 20,295,691
12,552,345 - 12,552,345 12,119,680
8,310,656 43,772 8,354,428 1,658,169
7,289,098 106,340 7,395,438 2,118,712
28,152,099 150,112 28,302,211 15,896,561
5,753,506 3,759,735 9,513,241 4,399,130
2,310,877 137,910 2,448,787 484,331

(1,946,297) - (1,946,297) -
- - - 52,369
364,580 137,910 502,490 536,700
6,118,086 3,897,645 10,015,731 4,935,830
120,000 - 120,000 200,000
(4,448,579) (240,000) (4,688,579) (500,000)

5,990,009 4,555,091 10,545,100 -

2,797,057 - 2,797,057 -
10,576,573 8,212,736 18,789,309 4,635,830
265,068,533 9,543,371 274,611,904 16,718,316
$ 275,645,106 $ 17,756,107 $293,401,213 $ 21,354,146
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

NET POSITION TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

EXHIBIT 11

Net change in fund net position, enterprise funds $ 18,789,309

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Internal services funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as the purchase of equipment and insurance, to individual funds.
The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with

governmental activities. The amount shown represents the net revenue (expense)

allocated to business-type activities. 547,661

Change in net position, business-type activities $ 19,336,970

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

EXHIBIT 12

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash received for miscellaneous items
Cash paid for claims

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities
Premium on issuance of bonds
Cost of issuance of debt
Interest paid
Impact fees

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments
Interest received

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year
Classified as
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year

TOTAL CASH AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities

(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in pension related deferred outifows
Increase (decrease) in accounts and contracts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in pension related deferred inflows

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
From developer contributions of capital assets
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business- Governmental
Type Activities Activities -
Water & Stormwater - Enterprise Internal
Sewer Fund Utility Fund Fund Service Funds
$ 33346373 $§ 3922304 $ 37,268677 $ 19,671,980
(8,367,372) - (8,367,372) (567,359)
(11,733,742) (60,475) (11,794,217) (5,162,466)
- - - 851
- - - (8,468,312)
13,245,259 3,861,829 17,107,088 5,474,694
120,000 - 120,000 200,000
(4,448,579) (240,000) (4,688,579) (500,000)
(4,328,579) (240,000) (4,568,579) (300,000)
(8,679,721) (273,937) (8,953,658) (4,005,059)
- 163,312 163,312 143,274
17,195,000 - 17,195,000 -
(5,410,000) - (5,410,000) -
1,219,761 - 1,219,761 -
(364,261) - (364,261) -
(1,805,864) - (1,805,864) -
2,797,057 - 2,797,057 -
4,951,972 (110,625) 4,841,347 (3,861,785)
(88,994,225) (3,709,736) (92,703,961) (15,474,075)
69,312,644 - 69,312,644 12,885,270
2,310,879 137,910 2,448,789 484,331
(17,370,702) (3,571,826) (20,942,528) (2,104,474)
(3,502,050) (60,622) (3,562,672) (791,565)
5,722,518 224,781 5,947,299 1,552,245
$ 2220468 $ 164,159 $ 2384627 $ 760,680
$ 768,255  $ 164,159  § 932414  $ 760,680
1,452,213 - 1,452,213 -
$ 2220468 $ 164,159 § 2,384,627 $ 760,680
$ 5753506 $ 3,759,735 § 9,513,241 $ 4,399,130
7,289,098 106,340 7,395,438 2,118,712
(559,232) 12,457 (546,775) (31,306)
2,142 - 2,142 (20,884)
- - - (7,177)
(1,348,840) - (1,348,840) -
718,570 (16,703) 701,867 (396,332)
41,668 - 41,668 5,432
(222,259) - (222,259) -
(56,716) - (56,716) (1,328)
2,295,990 - 2,295,990 -
(9,512) - (9,512) -
- - - (591,553)
(659,156) - (659,156) -
7,491,753 102,094 7,593,847 1,075,564
$ 13245259 § 3861829 § 17,107,088 § 5474694
$ 5990009 $ 4,555,091 $ 10,545,100 $ -
(821,707) (52,843) (874,550) 161,534
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 13
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Lewisville Castle Hills
OPEB PID Debt
Liability Trust Service
Fund Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 17,237  § -
Investments
Mutual funds - equity 3,143,650 -
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,481,511 1,986,904
Total investments 4.625,161 1,986,904
Interest receivable 185 2,563
Total assets 4642583 1,989,467
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,767 -
Due to debt holders - 1,989,467
Total liabilities 4,767 $ 1,989,467
NET POSITION
Restricted for post employment benefits other than
pensions 4 637,816
Total net position $ 4,637,816

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 14
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Lewisville
OPEB Liability
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Employer contributions $ 119,738
Investment earnings, net of unrealized/realized gain(loss) 166,119
Less investment expense (34,217)
Total additions 251,640
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 357,757
Total deductions 357,757
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (106,117)
NET POSITION - beginning 4,743,933

NET POSITION - ending

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 15
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Lewisville
Lewisville Lewisville Tax Tax Parks &
Housing Industrial Increment Increment Library Total
Finance Development Reinvestment Reinvestment Development Component
Corporation  Authority, Inc. Zone #1 Zone #2 Corporation Units
ASSETS
Cash $ 129 §$ 185 $ 45101 § 45541 § 427,613 $ 518,569
Investments 4,890 7,020 1,709,384 1,726,039 16,207,023 19,654,356
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Taxes - - - - 1,360,217 1,360,217
Interest 16 23 5,600 5,651 52,508 63,798
Other - - - - 10,698 10,698
Prepaid items - - - - 5,383 5,383
Capital assets
Non-depreciable - - 63,500 - - 63,500
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation) - - 5,756,071 - - 5,756,071
Total assets 5,035 7,228 7,579,656 1,777,231 18,063,442 27,432,592
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension contributions after measurement date - - - - 111,523 111,523
Difference in expected and actual pension
experience - - - - 22,630 22,630
Difference in projected and actual earnings on
pension assets - - - - 200,885 200,885
Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - 335,038 335,038
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable - - 64,836 - 766,638 831,474
Accrued liabilities - - - - 66,867 66,867
Accrued interest payable - - 32,219 - 100,861 133,080
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year - - 460,000 - 2,123,646 2,583,646
Due in more than one year - - 4,695,000 - 17,477,741 22,172,741
Total liabilities - - 5,252,055 - 20,535,753 25,787,808
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference in projected and actual pension
experience - - - - 16,193 16,193
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 16,193 16,193
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets - - 664,571 - - 664,571
Restricted for tax increment reinvestment zone - - 1,663,030 1,777,231 - 3,440,261
Unrestricted 5,035 7,228 - - (2,153,466) (2,141,203)
Total net position (deficit) $ 5035 §$ 7228 $ 2327601 $ 1,777,231 $ (2,153,466) $ 1,963,629

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS EXHIBIT 16
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Governmental Activities
Lewisville Lewisville Tax Tax Lewisville Parks
Housing Industrial Increment Increment and Library Total
Finance Development Reinvestment Reinvestment Development Component
Corporation Authority, Inc. Zone #1 Zone #2 Corporation Units

EXPENSES
General government $ - $ - $ 249,608 $ - 143,463 $ 393,071
Culture, parks and recreation - - - - 5,855,076 5,855,076
Public senices - - 113,286 - - 113,286
Interest on long term debt - - 265,251 - 829,297 1,094,548

Total expenses - - 628,145 - 6,827,836 7,455,981
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for senices

Culture, parks and recreation - - - - 192,302 192,302

Capital Contributions - - - - 160,000 160,000

Total program revenues - - - - 352,302 352,302
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes - - 904,142 685,545 - 1,589,687
Sales taxes - - - - 8,195,329 8,195,329
Investment earnings 150 214 53,115 46,032 487,874 587,385

Total general revenues 150 214 957,257 731,577 8,683,203 10,372,401
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
(DEFICIT) 150 214 329,112 731,577 2,207,669 3,268,722
Net position (deficit), beginning 4,885 7,014 1,998,489 1,045,654 (4,361,135) (1,305,093)
Net position (deficit), ending $ 5,035 $ 7,228 $ 2,327,601 $ 1,777,231 $ (2,153,466) $ 1,963,629

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LEWISVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Lewisville is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and a five-member
council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
(see note below for description) to emphasize that they are legally separate from the government.

Blended Component Units

The Lewisville Health Benefit Trust was established by the City under the Texas Political
Subdivision Employees Uniform Group Benefits Act (Chapter 172 Texas Local Government
Code) to account for health insurance of employees, retirees and dependents. The City Council
appoints a board, and board members are removable by the City Council. The City Council
approves the trust’s annual budget. The activities of the Lewisville Health Benefit Trust are
accounted for as a blended component unit and included with the internal service funds. The
Health Benefit Trust is reported as a blended component unit since it provides services
exclusively for the City of Lewisville.

The Local Government Corporation was established July 2006 to assist in economic
development initiatives. Allowable under Chapter 431 of the Texas Transportation Code, this
corporation cannot incur any debt without City Council approval. The City Council appoints
a board, and board members are removable by the City Council. The existing four person
board is comprised of current City Council members. The City Council approves the
corporation’s annual budget. In the event of dissolution, title to all assets transfer to the City.
The activities of the Lewisville Local Government Corporation are accounted for as a blended
component unit and included with the non-major governmental funds. The Local Government
Corporation is reported as a blended component unit since its governing body is substantially
the same as the City’s, and a financial benefit relationship exists.

In November 2011, the City of Lewisville voters approved, in special election, the creation of
the Lewisville Crime Control and Prevention District. The District was formed for the purpose
of providing crime control and prevention programs derived from one-eighth cent sales tax
within the City of Lewisville. Allowable under Chapter 363 of the Texas Local Government
Code, the City Council appointed their own membership as the board of directors of the
District. The City Council approves the district’s annual budget. In the event of dissolution,
title to all assets transfer to the City. The activities of the Lewisville Crime Control and
Prevention District are accounted for as a blended component unit and included with the non-
major governmental funds. The District is reported as a blended component unit since its
governing body is the same as the City’s, and a financial benefit relationship exists.
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CITY OF LEW